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To
The Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Report and Statement of Accounts for the financial year

ended 31st March, 2018.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The Company’s financial performance for the year under review along with previous year’s figures are given

hereunder:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Particulars For year ended 31% For Year ended 31
March, 2018 March, 2017
Amount (in 'C00’s} Amount {in ‘000's}
Total Revenue 573,964 711476
Other income 2,224 3,134
| Total income 576,188 714,610
Expenses 764,375 772,847
Profit before (188,188) {58,237)
Extraordinary
items & tax o
Extraordinq_rv_items B (7,185} i ) 87:560 )
Profit before Tax (181,003} (145,797} N
Tax 12,896 7,017 '
Profit/{Loss) after tax {193,899) [152,815)

DIVIDEND

The Company has not declared any dividend for the year under review and accordingly the company is not

required to transfer any amount to Generai Reserve,

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As stipulated in Section 134{5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors subscribe to the “Directors’
Responsibility Statement” and confirm that:

(a) in preparation of Annual Accounts for the year ended 31% March, 2018, the applicable Accounting
Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and appiied them consistently end made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial vear on March 31, 2018 and its foss for that period ended on March 31,
2018;

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing



and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
{d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the Com pany on a going concern hasis;

(e} the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

{f} the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively,

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the financial year ended 31% March 2018, 4 (Four) Meetings of the Board of Directors of the company
were held on 16.05.2017, 13.09.2017, 21,11.2017,19.12.2017.

S.no Name of the Director No. of Board No. of Meetings
Meeting held attended
1 Mr. Anil Dungarshi Gala 4 4
2 Mr. Sumit Gupta 4 2
3 Mr. Sarveshwar Shrivastava 4 1
4 Mir, Sanjeev Jitendra Gala 4 1
5 Mr. Kalpesh Harakhchand Gala 4 2
6 Mr. Tushar Kumudrai lani 4 4
7 Mr. Chandravir Saran Das 4 4
8 Mr, Natrajan Vishwanathan lyer 4 4

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL APPOINTED/REAPPOINTED OR RESIGNED
DURING THE YEAR

DIN No. /PAN Name of Director Designation Date of Date of
No. Appointment Cessatign
/Re-appointment

00039596 Sumit Gupta Managing Director 16/05/2017 -
00039596 Sumit Gupta Managing Director 4/10/2017

00708584 Sarveshwar Managing Director - 16/05/2015

Shrivastava
00039596 Sumit Gupta Chief Financial - 16/05/2017
Officer
00093731 Kalpesh Additional Director 16/05/2017 -
Marakhchand Gala

ANNUAL RETURN
The extract of Annual Return of the Company in Form MGT-9 forms part of the Board’s Report and is annexed
herewith as Annexure-1.




DEPOSITS
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
Details of loans, guarantees or investments made under Section 186 are furnished in enclosad statement of
accounts and are not being mentioned here for the sake of brevity.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company that
occurred during the end of the financial year to which this financia! statements relate and the date of this
repoit.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary or joint ventures or associates company. The Company is
subsidiary Company of Navneet Education Limitaed.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by
coordinated efforts to minimize, menitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of unfortunate
gvents or to maximize the realization of opportunities. The company has laid down a comprehensive Risk
Assessment and minimization procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. These
procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a properly
defined frameworlk. The major risks have been identified by the Company and its mitigation
process/measures have been formulated in the areas such as business, project execution, event, financial,
human environment and statutory compliance.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During
the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or

operation was observed.
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Tradernark application has been filed under The Trade Marks Act, 1999 conferring the exclusive rights to use
the trademarlk in relation to its preducts and services and is under process,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY [CSR)
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 as relate to Corporate Social Responsibility do not

apply to the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
As per the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted an audit

committee which functions as per the provisions of the Act,

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
As per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Company has constituted a Nomination
and Remuneration Committee which functions as per the provisions of the Act,




RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
There was no contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of the

Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review which was not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary
course of business,

AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors, M/s N.A Shah Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants were appointed as statutory Auditors of
the Company to hold office from the conciusion of the $9™ Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of
the 24" Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2822 (subject to ratification of their appointment by
the Members at every AGM held after the 19" AGM) and being eligible offer themselves for reappeointment
of the Company, which is subject te shareholders approval.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the Auditors in their Report. The ohservations of the
Statutory Auditors in their Report on the financial statement for the year ended on 31 March, 2018 are
self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report are not applicable to the Company.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All the Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill ail the
requirements as stipufated in Section 148(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themseives to be
appeinted as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The Company has no employee in the category of employees specified under Rule 5 (2] of the Companies
(Appeintment and Remuneration of Managerial Personned) Rules, 2014,

SHARES
There was no change in the Share Capital of the Company by way buy back of shares, bonus issue of shares
or any Stock Option Scheme to the employees during the year under review.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORXPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has set up a system in line with the reguirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the
workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, to redress complaints received and disposed off
during the financial year.

During the year under review, no complaint has been received by the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO
As the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activities the provisions of Section 134{m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company.

There was no foreign exchange inflow or outflow during the vear under review.
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The Board places on record its appreciation for the support and co-operation your company has been
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By order of the Board
For M/s Indiannica Learning private limited

A b bl Jn/wé rs

Anil Dungarshi Gala Sumit Gupta
Chairman & Director Managing Director
Date : 1*t May, 2018 DIN:00092952 DIN:00039596

Place: New Delhi



Annexure-1

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2016
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

1. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:
| CIN U22110DL1998PTC094399
li Registration Date 10/06/1998
fii Name of the Company INDIANMNICA LEARNING PRIVATE LIMITED
v Category/Sub-category of the
Company Limited by shares
V Address of the Registered office and | A-4%, Ground Floor (L2]), Mohan Co-Operative
contact details Industrial Fstate, Main Mathura Road, New Delhi
-110044
E-mail : accounts@ebindia.com
Tel:011-47154112
vi Whether Listed Company No
vi Name, Address and Contact details of | NA
Registrar and Transfer
Agent, if any

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be

stated:~
NIC Code of
Sl Name and Description of main the % to total turmover of the |
No, | products / services Product/ Company .
Service
1 Publishing, printing, and reproduction of] 581 100% I
recorded media |
HR PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Holdir % of
sl Name and Address ,g_ i Applicable
CIN/GLEN JSubsidiary/ | Shares
No. | of the Company ) Section
Associate held
1 Navneet Education
Limited L22200MH1984PLCO34055 Holding 100 2{48)




iv. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equty Share Capital Breakup as % of Total Equity)

i) Cotegory-wise Share Holding

Catepory of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

year

No. of Shares held at the end of the yvear

Demat

Physical

Total

Piof Total
Chara

Demat

Physical

Total 1%
Shares

%
Change
during

the

year

A. Promoters

{1) Indlan

a} Individual/ HUF

15

15

a.01

15

15

0.01

h) Central
Govt. gr
State Govt.

c}Bodles Cor

49351048

45351048

89.59

49351042

49351048

93.53

d) Bank /FI

e} Any Othar

SUB TOTAL: (A} {1}

459351063

49351063

100

49351063

49351053

100

{2} Foreign

alNRls  Individuals

blOther  Individuals

c}Bodies Corporate

d) Banks /£

e} Any Other

Sub-Total
(A} (2):-

Total Shareholding of
Promoter (A} =
(A)1)+ (AN(2)

493151063

49351063

plale

49351063

100




(i) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl
Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beglnning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year ¢
No. ‘thange
v — : _— i share
: %ol Sharas .
%of Shares % of total holding
% of total i Pledged /|
Pledged / Shares of fduring
No. of Shares |Shares of the No, of Shares tencumbe red!
encumbered the ! i the
company to total
to total shares company year
shares
s . j _
H
L Navnegt Education Limited 4,93,51,063 100 ) i 4,93,51,063 100 ) i
Totad 4,93,51,063 100 4,93,51,063 o
(iil) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
sl. o
N Shareholding at the keginning of the year Cumudative shareholding during the year
a, :
% of Total Shares of % of total shares of the
Mo, of sharas Mo. of Sharas
the Company Company
1 At the beginning of the year - - - -
3. At the end of the vear - - -

*  There was no change during the Year

{iv)

Shareholding Patiern of top ten Shareholders {other than Directors,

Promaoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Cumulative 5 hareholding during the year

e~

51 Shareholding at the
No. ; beginning of the year
_ j For Each ofthe. Top 10 ' ND, of" ” % of Total Shares No. of Shares % of Total Shares of the
i Sharehcolders Shares of the Company : Cornpany
|
1. -




(v} Sharcholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl No. Sharehelding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
for Each of the No. of Shares % of Total Shares No. of Shares % of Total Shares of the
Directars and of the Company Company
Kma
i. {At the beginning of the NH_. NE ML o N
year
- T —— " . e . o S N;L

Decrease in Share
holding during the year
specifying the reasons

for increase
/ decrease
a.g. aliotment / transfer :

/ bonus/ sweat

3. At the End of the year NIL NIL NI NIL

V.  INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstandingfacerued but not due for payment,
(Ampunt in '000%)

Secured Loans Unsecured Peposits Total

axtluding Daposits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i] Principal Amount 8,743 170,000 : 174,743
iijlmterest due but not paid i} Interest accrued
but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 4,743 170,000 174,743
Change in Indebtedness during the financial
year- Addition
Reduction 4,743 20,000 24,743
Net Change
Indebtedness  at the end  of the
financial year
i} Principal Amount
0 150,000 150,000
if} interest due but not paid
ity tnterest accrued but not due




Vi,

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A Remuneration to Managing Otrector, Whole-thne Directors andfor Manage {In Rs}):

Total

Sl Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/
N.. Managur Amount
Sarveshwar
Sumit Gupta
Shrivastava
{wef 16" May
{15 Apri] - 16t May
20570
2017
1. Gross salary
(a) Safary as per provisions contained in section 85,39,147 25,94,780
17{1) of the income-tax Act,
1961
{b) Value of perquisites u/s 32,400 5,110
17(2} Incomea-tax Act, 1961
{¢] Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income
tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option )
3. bweat Equity )
4, Commission
- as % of profit - -
- others, specify..
5. QOthers, please sperify - 15,86,538
Total (A} 85,71,547 41,86,428
Ceiling as per the Act {After passing the special
) 1,68,00,000 84,000,000
Resolution)
B, Remuneration to other Directors (in Rs):
Sl Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total i
%14 fwit.
Tushar | Chandravir . -
lani S Das
1. independent Directors
- Fee for attending boards | 80000 | 80,000 1,60,600
committee meetings 40,000 40,000 80,000
- Commission
+ Others, please specify




Total (1}

1,20,000 | 1,20,000

2,40,000

Other Non-Exectitive
Directors
- Fee for attending board/
committee meetings
+ Commission

- Others, please specify

Totai (2]

Total [B)=({1+2)

1,20,000 | 1,20,000

240,000

Total Manageria)

2%

Overalt Ceiling as
per tha Act.

€. Remuneration to Key Manageriat Parsonnel ather than MD/Manager/W7D

Amount In RS,

sl

[{3*N

Particulars of

Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

(Chief Financial
Officer)

Sumit Gupts
{13 April-15% May]

2017}

{Company (CEC)

Secretary)

Meera

Sawhney

Totai

Gross salary

{a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1} of the

Incomae-tax Act, 1961

{b} value of perquisites u/fs
17(2] Incorme-tax Act, 1961
{¢} Prafits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3)

65,24,447

3,398,348

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
as % of profit
+ athers, specify...

Cthaers, please specify

Totat

66,24,447

3,359,348




VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Section of the Brief Description Details of Penalty/ Authority (RD/ Appeal made if
Type Companies Act Punishment/ NCLT/ Court) any (give
Compounding fees details)
imposed
- g e s e S
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
p— l;(;na[_ty ____________ =
Punishment NIL

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT (COMPANY SECRETARY)

Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding
By order of the Board

Date : 1** May, 2018

Place: New Delhi

For M/s Indiannica Learning private limited

Sy

Lo 1 fele

Anil Dungarshi Gala Sumit Gupta
Chairman & Director Managing Director
DIN:00092952 DIN:00039596



N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP 'ORIGIN A’ J

i
Chartered Accountants ]'

Independent Auditor’s Report

To,

The Members of

Indiannica Learning Private Limited

{Formerly known as ‘Encyclopaedia Britannica {india) Private Limited")

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial siatements of Indiannica Learning Private
Limited (‘tha Company’) which comprise the Balance Sheat as at 318 March 2018, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) Statement of changes in Lquity and the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory informaticn (together referred to as Ind AS financial statements).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’'s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’} with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements

that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other

comprehensive income, cash flows and statement of changes in equity of the Company in accordance

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards

{Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
tandard) Rules, 2015 as amended from time tc time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonabie and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant te the preparation and preseniation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a irue and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisicns of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of Ind AS financia! statementis in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10} of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind
AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in lhe Ind A3 Tinancial slalenenls. Thie procedures selecled depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We beiieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

B 4145, Paragon Centre, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai 400 013.
Tel.: §1-22-40733000 @ Fax : 31-22-40733030 & E-mail : info@nashah.com



N. A, SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s report (continued)
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2018, and its loss
including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Other Matters

The figures for the year ended 31% March 2017 are based on the previously issued Ind AS financial
statements that were audited by the erstwhile auditors whose report dated 16 May 2017 expressed
an unmodified opinion.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
‘Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; '

b. In our cpinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as ¢n 315 March 2018
taken cn record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31
March 2818, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f.  With respect to adequacy of internal financial controls system cver financial reporting of the
Company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report given in
“Annexure B”: and




N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s report (continued)

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audii and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from fime to time, in
our opinion and to the best of our informatior and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has no pending litigations, which will have an impact on its Ind AS financial
statements

i. The Company did not have any fong-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For N.A Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 116560W / W100149

Prashant Daftary ~
FParther
Membership No. 117080

Place: New Delhi
Date: 1% May 2018



N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

independent Auditor’s report (continued)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report for the year ended 31%' March 2018
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of
our report of even date]

() Inrespect of the Company’s fixed assets:

a. The Company bas maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixcd assets.

b. The Company has physically verified all fixed assets during the year and no material
discrepancies noticed on such verification. In our opinion, frequency of verification is
reasanable having regards to the size of the Company and nature of its assets.

¢. According to the information and explanations given to us and on examination of the records,
we report that the Company does not own any immovable property. Therefore, clause (i) (c) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i) The inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion,
the frequency of physical verification is reascnable. The discrepancies noticed on verification
between the physical stocks and the book records were not material.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other pariies
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act Therefore, requirements of
clause (iii}{a), (ii)(b} and (iii)(¢) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{ivi During the year the Company has not granted any loans or made any investments cr provided
any guarantees or securities covered under section 185 and section 186 of the Act. Therefore,
question of ensuring compliance with section 185 and 186 of the Act does not arise.

(v}  Inour opinion and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits which are covered under section 73 to 76. Therefore, question of reporting compliance
with directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder does not arise. We are informed
that no Order relating to the Company has been passed by the Company law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

{viy The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the services of the Company. Therefore, paragraph 3{vi} of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (&) According to the information and as per explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company in respect of amounts deducted / accrued in the
hooks of accounts, the Company has generally heen requiar in depnsiting nndisputed statufory
dues inciuding provident fund, employeas’ state insurance, tax deduction at source, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax, value added tax, cess and any other material
statutory dues as applicable to the Company during the year with the appropriate authorities. As
at 318 March 2018, there are nc such undisputable dues payable for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

{b) According to the records of the Company and information and explanaticns given to us, there
are no dues in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, tax deduction at source,
income tax, saies tax, service tax, goods and service tax, value added iax, cess and any other
material statutory dues which have not been deposited with appropriate authorities on acceunt of
any dispute.

{viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the managf/qf,é/:fﬁe the -
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues fo a bank and financial insl;____rt{*én. The~
Company does not have any dues in respect of debenture holders or government.  [/=f




(ix)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xvi)

N. AL SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s report (continued)

Curing the year, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer including debt instruments and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of the clause
(ix) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the
information and explanations given to us, wa have neither come acress any incidence of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its employees / officers, nor have been informed of
any such case by the management.

In our opinion and accarding to the infarmation and explanations given to us, the Company has
paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is nct a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (x#) of paragraph 3 of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disciosed in the financial
statement as required by the applicable Ind AS - Refer Note 36 to the Ind AS financial statement.

According to the information and explanations given tc us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or parly convertible debentures
during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records, the Company has not enterad into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him and hence compliance with Section 192 of the Act does not arise.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration Na.,116560W / W100149

T I e

Prashant Daftary

Partner o )

Membership Na. 117080

Place: New Delhi
Date: 18 May 2018



N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s report {continued)

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31*' March 2018
[Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under section 143(3)(i) of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indiannica Learning Private
Limited ("the Company”), as of 315t March 2018, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended cn that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note'), issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAlI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, inciuding adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its asseis, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controts over financial
reporting based an ¢ur audit. We conducted our audit in accardance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to he prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internat Financial Cantrels and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reascnable assurance abcout whether adequate internal financial controis over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls aver financial reparting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstaterment of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We bhelieve that the zudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit epinicn on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controifs over Financial Reporting

A company's interna! financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statemenis for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with autherisations of management and directors of the Company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautherised acquisition..
use, or dispesition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the fi?g/_‘gg'_tal--;f
statements. i




N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s report {continued)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of cellusion or improper management override of confrols, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Alse, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 313 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Cver Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 116560W / W100149

9/48

Prashant Daftary
Partner
Membership number: 117080

Place: New Delhi
Date: 18t May 2018



[ndiannica Learning Private Limited

(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (fndia} Private Limited)

CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

(Al eivornis are in thousands of Indian Rupeas; except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Notes As at March 31, As at March 31,
2018 2017
Assets
MNan-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 21,068 29,014
Intangible assets 4 290,787 340,335
imangible Assets under Development 2,085 -
Fiancial assets
Security deposils 5 4,201 4,456
Bank deposits 3 275 264
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 11,327 24,706
Other non eurrent assels 7 - 19
329,743 398,794
Current assets
Inventories 8 149,927 121,016
Financial assets
Trade receivables 9 631,931 673,050
Cash and cash equivalents 10 8,025 14,866
Other financial assets 5 - -
Other current assels ] 17.644 15.432
807,527 824.364
Total assets 1,137,270 1,223,158
Equity and liabilities
Equiey
Equily share capital 12 493,511 493,511
Cther equity
Share Premium 210,606 210,606
Retained earnings (321,379 {128.729)
Total equity 382,737 575,387
Non-curreant liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13 - 3,649
Provisions 14 9126 13.327
9,126 16,976
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 135 252,161 249,381
Borrowings 16 150,000 170,000
Qther financial liabilities 17 185,171 44,700
Short term provisions 14 129,986 148,323
Deferred Revenue 18 7,293 3,131
Other current liabilities 19 20.795 15.06C
745,407 630,795
Total liabilities 754,533 647,771
Total equity and liabilities 1,137,270 1,223,158
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
Noles to finanical statements Jrodd

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP

ICAI Firm Registration No. 116560W / W100149

Chartered Accountants

Prashant Daftary .
Partner

Membership no.; 117030
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 01, 2018

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Indiannica Learning Private Limited
(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (India)

Private Limited)
b~ B leld
Anil Dungarshi Gala
Director

DIN: 00092952
AL

Meera Sawhney
Company Secretary
Mem. No. A48522

mit Gupta
Managing director
DIN: 0003959

il A



Indiannica Learning Private Limited

(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (india) Private Limited)

CIN: G22110DL1998PTC094399
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended

(Al amounts are in thousands of Indian Rupees; except per share data and unless stated othervise)

Particulars Notes March 31,2018 Mareh 31,2017

Income
Revenue from operations 20 573,964 711,476
Other income 2] 2,224 3,134
Lotal income 576,188 714,610
Expenses
Cost of raw materials & components consumed 22 234,311 187,181
Purchase of traded goods and services 5,655 24,208
Decrease/ {Increase) in inventories of finished goods 23 (29,908) 3,084
Publication expenses 24 7,654 02,606
Employee benefits expense 25 193,223 222,823
Finance costs 26 16,925 20,665
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 54,890 18,752
Other expenses 28 201,642 202,628
Total expenses 764,375 772,847
{Loss} before exceptional items and tax (188,188) (58,237)
Exceptional ltems (refer note 41) 4] (7,185 87,560
(Loss) before tax {181,003) (145,797)
[ncome tax expense

Current tax 29 -

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years 29 - 189

Deferred tax 29 12,896 6.828

12,896 7,017

(Loss) for the year {193.899) (152.814)
Other comprehensive income (OCH
Items that will nof be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss

Re-measurement (loss)gain on defined benefit plan 1,73] (L,178)

Income tax expense (482) -
Totat other comprehensive income for the year, net of 1ax 1,249 (LT
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year (192,630) (153,985)
Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted (in INR)
Computed on the basis of total Loss before OCI for the year 30 (3.93) (6.07)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
Notes to finanical statements 31044

The accoempanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per vut iepuil ol even dut

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
1CA] Firm Registration No. 110560W / W100149

Chartered Accountants L
% %4 Ly

Prashant Daftary
Partner
Membership ne.: 117080

Place: New Dethi
Date: May 01,2018

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Indiannica Learning I’rivate Limited
(Formerly known as Encyelopaedia Britamnica (India) Private
Li:mi.fed)

-:—t%w_‘\ | £ele

Anil Dungarshi Gala
Director
DIN: 00092952

AW
Mecra Sawhney

Company Secretary
Mem, No. A48522

—

Managing director
DIN: 00039596
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Indiannica Learning Private Limited

(Formerly knovn as Encyeclopaedia Britannica (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Al aniounis are in thousands of Indian Rupees; except per share dala and unless stated othenvvise}

Particulars

March 33,2018

March 31,2017

A. Cash flow from operating activities

(Loss)/Profit before tax (181,003) (145,797)
Adjustments to reconcile (loss)/ profit before tax fo net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expense 54,890 18,752
Fixed assets disposed off 136 -
Finance inceme (22) (743)
Provision for doubtful debts 12,366 4,879
Inventory written off 16,292 -
Unrealised foreign exchange loss (net) 217 3,036
Finance costs 19,798 19,119
Operating profit before changes in assets and liabilitics (77,327) (100,757}
Working Capital adjustments:
(Increase} in trade receivables 30,406.90 (62,280)
Decreased(Increase) in inventories (45,203) 4,482
Decrease(Increase) in other financial assets 267 3,485
Decrease/(Increase) in other non-financial assets (461) 1,556
Increase/ {Decrease) in provisions (22,53%) 48,970
(Decrease)Increase in trade payable 2,440 (66,734)
(Decreasel Increase in current non-financial liabilities 9,898 (3,821)
Cash (used in} operations (102,519) (175,100)
Income tax paid (net of refund) (1,726) 195
Net cash flow (used in) operating activities (A) {104,244) (174.904)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of preperty, plant and equipment (3,054) 21712
Capital Work in Progress - 7434
Purchase of imangible assets (65) (351,840)
Intangible assets uader development (2,0835) 274
Proeeeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 5,585 79
Interest received - 745
Net cash flow (used in) / invested in investing activities (B) 381 (371,020)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of term loans (4,744) (147,887)
Loan taken from holding company 150,000 170,000
Loan repaid to holding company (170,000) -
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital - 498,190
Transaction costs on increase of authorised share capital - (2,700
Interest Paid (19,798) (19,119
Net eash flow from financing activities (C) (44,542) 498,484
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) (148,405) (47,440)
Cash and cash equivaients at the beginning of the year (28,741) 18,699
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year (refer note 10) {177,146) (28,741)




Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalent as per Cash Flow Statement

Particulars .
Cash & cash Equivalent ( Note 10) 8,025 14,866
Bank Overdraft ( Note 16) (185,171) {43,606)
Balance as per Cash Flow Statement (177,146) (28,740)
Changes in financing Liabilities arising from cash and non-cash changes (Refer note 44)

Summary ot signihicant accounting policies 21

Notes 1o finanical statements 3to4dd

I'he accompanymng accounting policies and explanatory notes torm an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For IN. A. Shah Associates LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of

ICAI Firm Registration No. [16360W / W100149 Indiannica Learning Private Limited

Chartered Accountants - {(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (India) Private

Limited)

Ao Lol

Anil Dungarshi Gala

IR

Prashant Daftary ~

Partner Director
Membership no.: 117080 DIN: 00092952
Place: New Delhi o
Date: May 01, 2018 \u\’-’u
Meera Sawhney
Company Secretary

Mem. No. A48522

4K

Managing director
DIN: 00039596



fndiannica Learning Private Limited

(Formerly known os Encyelopaedia Britannica (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U22110DLI998PTC094399

Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2018

(Al amounts are in thousands of Indian Rupees; excepi per share data and unless siated othenvise)

1

al

b)

[

(a

—

[{]

Corporate Information

Indiannica Learning Private Limited { formery known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (India) Private Limited) is a private limited company
domiciled in India (CIN number U22110DL1998PTC0%4399); and is a subsidiary of Navneet Education Limied (‘the Holding Company’ and
‘the Ultimate Holding Company®). The Company’s operations comprises of publishing and sale of educational books with products ranging from
school books, reference books, technical & professional books.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Direciors on 5t May 2018
Busis of preparation
Statement of compliance;

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (*Ind AS") notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The Company has consistently applied the
accounting policies used in the preparation for all periods presented in these financial statements.

The financia! statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the cenain financial instruments, obligations under defined
benefit plans which have been measured at fair value as required under relevant Ind AS.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the
division Il of Schedule 1[1 of the Companies Act, 2013, for 2 company whose financial staternents are made in compliance with the Companies
(India Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016.

Funciional and presentation of currency

The financial statements are prepared in [ndian Rupees which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts are rounded 10 the nearest
thousands.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated al cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price and directly atiributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as recognized in the
financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per Indian GAAP and used it as its deemed cost at the date of transition.

Subsequent expenditure related 10 an item of Property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from
the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing Property, plant and equipment,
including day-to-day repair and mainienance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of prafit and loss for the period
during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and aie recognized in he stalement of profil and loss when the assel is derecogiized.

Depreciation on assets s caleulated on a straight-line basis as per the uselul lives of the assels prescribed under the Schiedule 11 {under section
123} to the Companies Act, 2013, except:

4) in respect Of servers and nelworks where the Company has estimated useful life of 3 years being tower than the uselul life of 6 years as
presesibed under I'an C of Schedule 1 of the Companics Act, 2013, based an its internal tsehnical assessment.

bY Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the veriod of lease term or 10 vears. whichever is less.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date and in
case of any changes, effect of the same (s given prospeciively,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognized when the entity controls the asset, 1t 1s probable that tuiure economic benents attntuled 10 the asset will flow 10
the entity and the cost of the agset can be reliably measured.




Indiannica Learning Private Limited

(Formerly known as Encyvclopaedia Britannica (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U2Z2110D1L1998PTC094399

Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2018

(Al amonrnts are in thousands of Indian Rupees; except per share data and wniess siared otherwise)

{c)

(d)

(e)

(f

At initial recognition, intangible assets are recognised at cost. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Iniangible assets with infinite life are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
ihe intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation methed for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected paitern of consumption of futuze economic benefits embodied in the
assel are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms par of carrying value of
another asset.

The Company has assessed the estimated useful lives of different categories of inlangible assets as follows:

a) License is-capitalized at the amoums paid 1o acquire the respective license for use and is amortised over the period of license.
b) Software are amortized over the period of 2.5 years (SLM}

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an Intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying ameunt of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indicaiion that an assel may be impaired. [f any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimaies the asset’s recoverable amount, An assel’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and i15 value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other asseis or group of assels.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amounl, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

[n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects current
market agsessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transaclions are 1zken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Impairment losses, if any,
are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as a component of depreciation and amortisation expense.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed oniy if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited to the extent the carrying ameunt of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and Joss when the asset is carried at the
revalued amount, in which case the reverse is treated as a revaluation increase.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as cwrent when it
is:

> Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading

> Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

=Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assels are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

[t is expecled to be settled in normal operating cycle

[tis held primarily for the purpose of trading

[t is due 10 be seitled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least pweive monihs after the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-curgent assets and liabilities.

Leases
Wherethe company is [essee

Leases, where the lessor effeclively relains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased ileim, are classificd as opeating
leases. Operalting lease paymenis are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and con hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.




[ndiannica Learning Private Limited

(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britammica (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U221t0DLI998PTC094399

Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2018

(Al amownis are in thousands of Indian Rupees: except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

(2} Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 20 a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised initially a1 fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable te the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

Debt instrurnents at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income {(FVTQOCI)

Debt instcuments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair vatue through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value thivugh other cemprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
The category applies to the Company’s trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, security and other deposits.
A “debl instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows 1hat are solely payments of principal and interest {SPP1) on the

principal amount ouistanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

in accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected eredit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impaimment loss on
the financial assets that are debt instruments and are initially measured at fair value with subsequent measurement at amortised cost.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment {oss allowance for trade and other receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reperiing date, right from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment Joss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a sigmificant
increase in the credit risk since initizl recognition. [f credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in the subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on a nwvelve month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accerdance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the entity expects to receive (i.e., ll cash shortfalis}, discounted at the original EIR.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognitton and measurement

Financial liahilivies are classified, at initial roengnition, s G sl Teadilidew v i value througl prohil or Tuss, luans @id borrswdngs of
payahlrs, 07 appropriato.

ANl Mnancfal Habintes are recognised initially at fair value and_ in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, et of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities inclnde trade and other payables, etc.

Subsegueent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This categorj' includes trade and other payables etc. Afier initial recognition, such liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as weil as through the EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by 1aking into account any discount or premium on acguisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance ¢osts in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liabitity. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-classification of financial assets

The Company determines ¢lassification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no re-classification is
made for financial assets which are equity insfruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a re-classification
is made only if there is a change in the business medel for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequernt.
The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant ¢
the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins
or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company re-classifies financial assets, it applies the re-classification
prospectively from the re-classification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period foliowing the change in business
model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the balance sheel if there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and szitle the liabilities simultaneously.

(h) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

i. Raw materals: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cosi is

determined on first in, first out basis.

ii. Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the
normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

ii. Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories (o their present location and condition. Cost is
detenmined on a first in first out basis.

Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary (o make the sate.

(i) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probabie that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, Revenue 15 measured af the fair vatue of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account conwractually defined terms of
pavmant and oxaluding e or duslee collgsigd on bl Dot the poveramment The Tollovry specilie ecopoilion veileoa mnst Alsa bes mes hefiars
revenue is recognized:

Sale nf gonds
Revenue [rom sale of goods is recognised net of retumns, trade discount, cash discount and other rebates when all the significant risks and rewards

of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer.

Sale of digital content / right to use content .
Revenue from subseription of digital content / night to use centent is accounted uver Lhe subscrigtion £ agieement period n accordance with the

terms of the armangement.

Sale ol services
Revenue from sale of services is recognised as per the terms of the agreement.

*
Interest "’f-\ 'L'n c * b

Interest income 1S recognised as it accrues in statement of profit and loss, using the effective interest rate (EIR) whick is the rate thai ;’qnu
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument ara shoner period, where appropriate, 191 “hc'l
carrying amount of the (inancial asset. =
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i)

(k)

0]

Taxes

The income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. lncome tax is recognized in the statement of profit and Joss, excepl (o the
extent that it relates to items recognized in the ather comprehensive income or directly in equity, where the related income tax is also recognised
accordingly.

Current income fax

The cuwrent tax is calcutated on the basis of the tax rates, laws and regulations, which have been enacted or substaniively enacted as at the
reporling date. The payment made in excess / (shortfall) of the Company’s income tax obligation for the period are recognized in the balance
sheet as current income 1ax assets / liabilities.

Any interest / penaliies, related to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are nut icluded in income tax charge or (credit), but are rather
recognised within finance costs.

The Company periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect 1o situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
imterpreiation and establishes prowisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liabitity method on temporary differences between the 1ax bases of assets and liabilities at 1he reposting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced o the extent that il is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available 10 allow all or part of the deferred tax agset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expecied 10 apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacied at the reporting date,

Deferred tax asse1s and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current income tax asseis against current
inceme tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the sarne taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable 10 the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessanily 1akes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they oceur.

Employee benefits

The Company’s employee benefits mainly include salaries, allowances bonuses, defined contribution plans, defined benefit plans and
compensated absences.

The employee benefits are recognised in the vear in which the associated services are rendered by the employees.
a) Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a past-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions and will have no legal or
constructive obligation 1o pay further amounts, Under the defined contribution plan, the Company provides benefit in the form of contribution to
provident fund and superannuation fund in respect of certain employees at a pre-determined rate. The Company’s contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognized in statement of profit and loss as they fall due. The Company has no further obligations under these plans
beyond é1s monthly contributions.

b) Defined benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined coniribution plan. Under the defined benefit plan, the Company
provides retirement benefit in the form of gramity. Under the plan, a lump sum payment is made to eligible employees at retirement or
termination of employment based on respective employee salary and vears of experience with the Company.

The cost of providing benefits under this plan is determined on the basis of aciuarial valuation carried out at the reporting date by an independent
qualified actuasy using the projected unit credit method. Actuariai gains and losses are recognised in full in the period i which they occur in the
siatement of profit and loss.

The obligation 1owards the said benefit is recognised in the balance sheet, at the present vatue of the plan liabilities. The Company does not carry
any plan assets. The present value is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, using interest rates of government bonds.

comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsey
peciods. =
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¢) Compensated absences

Compensated absences benefit comprises of encashment and availment of leave balances that were earned by the employees over the pericd of
past employment,

The Company provides for the liability towards compensated absences on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out as at the reporting date, by
an independent qualified actary using the projected-unit-credit methed. The related re-measurements are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss in the period in which they arise.

(m} Provisions

(n)

(0)

(1) General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

If the effest of the time value of money is matenial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate. the risks
specific to the lability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of lime ig recognised as a finance cost.

Pravisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 1f it is no longer probable that an
outflow of resources would be required fo settle the obligation, the provision is reversed

(ii) Contingent assets/ liabilities

Contingent asseis are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asser is no longer a coatingent
asset, and is recognised as an asset

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes 1o accounts when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a

present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted eamnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year aitributable o ordinary equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between markel participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- Inthe principal market for the asset or liability
- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be aceessible by (he Comnpany.

Tl faie value s an asael e a Balolily iy measuicd osing the assumptica that markst particiopnts woyld wig when eriging the gaset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

The Company uses valvation techniques that are appropriate in e cicewnstances nod Jor which suflicient dota nre available to measure fair
value, mnzimizing the vac of relevant abacrvable inputy and minimizing tho ugsa of unabearvohla inpuir

All assels and liabilities for wlueh Lan value s measurad or disclnsed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair valuc hicrarchy,
described as follows, based on the towest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value seasurement is directly or indirectly
observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

/.
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers K|
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significamt to the fair It'nﬁ.{: { 4
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. -
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(p)

()

2.2

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or lability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Foreign currency transactions

The Company’s financial statements are presented in reporting currency, which is also the Company’s functional currency. Functional currency is
the currency” of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency in which the entity primarily
generates revenues and incurs expenses,

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the spot rates prevailing at the date the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translaled inte the functional currency at the closing exchange rate
prevailing as at the reporting date with the resulting foreign exchange differences recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items thal are measured in terms of histarical cost in a foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial trapsactions.

Segment reporting policies
Business segiment

The operating segments have been identified taking into account the nature of the products / services, nature of risks and returns, internal
organization sirocture and internal financial reporting system. The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting
policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whaole.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported ameunts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disctosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptiens and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affecied in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assemptions concerning the future and other key scurces of estimation uncertainty at the reperting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond
the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assurnptions when they occur.

(a) Estimated useful lives

The costs of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are depreciated on z straight line basis over their estimated economic useful
lives. Management estimates the economic useful lives of these assets to be within 3 0 10 years. These are common life expectancies applied in
the industry, Changes in the expected level of usage and technelogical developments could impact the economic useful lives and the residual
values of these assets, therefore, future depreciation and amertization charges could be revised. The carrying amount of the Company’s property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets ai the end of the reporting penod are disclosed 1n notes 3 and 4 respectively, to the financial
statements.

(b)Y Impalrment of Licenses

[mpairment testing is an area involving management judgement, requiring assessment as 1o whether the carrying value of assets can be supported
by the net present value of future cash flows derived from such assets using cash flow projections which have been discounted at an appropriate
tate T caleolating e net present valie af e Tibcs sasy Bosws cerin asaomptivns ses eqoited (o e miade inoespest of highly inicetain
matters including management’s expectations of fulure growth, discount rates ete. The company has prepared projections for next 5 years which
have been used tor the sawd calcuiations.

(cY Allowances for doubtful receivables

The management estimates at each reporting date the recoverability of its trade and other receivables. Allowances for doubtul receivables is
estimated based on the best available facts and circumstances, including but not limited 2o, confirmation from the customers using the ECL
approach. The allowances are re-valued and adjusted as additional information received affects the amount estimatad.
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2.3

(d) Defined benefit plan

The cost of defined benefit plan as well as the present value of the benefit obligations are determined using acruarial valuatiens. The actuanal
valuation involves making various assumptions, These include determination of discount rates, future salary increase and mortality rates. Due to
complexity of the valuation and the underlying assumnptions, defined benefil plan obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.

(e) Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of the financjal statements recorded on balance sheel cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using
valuation techniques inciuding the discounted cash flow method. The input to these models are derived from observable market date where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.

(f) Income taxes

The Company has exposure to income 1axes primarily in Indian jurisdictions. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable
thar taxable profit will be available against which losses can be utilized. Significant management’s judgement is required to determine the
amounts of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits along with future tax
planning strategies.

New standard issued but not effective and hence not adopted
The follawing standards issued / modified by MCA become effective w.e.f. 1™ Aprii 2018,

New Ind AS issued *
Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

Modification to existing Ind AS *

Ind AS 12 - [ncome Taxes

Ind AS 21 - The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates

Ind AS 28 - [nvestments in associates and joint ventures

Ind AS 40 — Investment property

Ind AS 112 - Disclosure of imerest in other entities

* Does not include consequential modification to other existing Ind AS due 1o issue of new Ind AS.

The Company is assessing the detailed potential impact of above amendments on the financial statements. Management presently is of the view
that it would not have a material impact on the financial statements.
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4

4.1

W

Intangible assets

Parsiculars Software Licenses Total

Cost or valuation

March 31, 2016 6,558 - 6,558
Additions 1,840 350,000 351,840
March 31,2017 8.398 350,000 358,398
Additions 65 - 65
Disposal (5,842) - (5,842)
March 31, 2018 2,620 350,000 352,620
Ac¢cumulated Amortisation

March 31, 2016 4,442 - 4,442
Charge for the year 1,598 12,023 13,621
Adjustiments - - -
March 31,2017 5,041 12,023 18.063
Charge for the year 1,386 48,226 49,611
Disposal (5,842) - (5.842)
March 31,2018 1,584 60,249 61,833
Net book value

March 31, 2017 2,357 337,977 340,335
March 31,2018 1,036 289,751 290,787

Impairment test for Licenses has been carried out by the management based on the projections for next five years as approved by the Board. Useful hife of this
License is greater than period for which projections are made. The net present value of the future earnings based on the projections is significantly higher than
the camrying value of the license. Some of the assumptions based on which projections are prepared based on market estimates and management judgements

which have been relied upon by the auditors.

Details of remainine amortisation period ang carrving value of intangibles are as under.

Description Carrying amount as at Remaining useful life as at [months]
March 31.2018 Mareh 31,2087 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Software 1,036 2,357 2tc 18 51029
Licenses 289.751 337,978 72 84
Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost March 31,2018 March 31,2017
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits 4,201 4,456
4,201 4456
Nop-current 4,201 4456
Current - -
4,201 4,456

Breakup of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables (refer note 9)

Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10}
Margin money deposits (refer note 10}
Security deposits

(This space has been fefi blank inteniianaily)

March 31,2018

March 31, 2017

631,931 673,050
8,025 14,866
275 264
4,201 4.456
644,432 692,636
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Particulars March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
7 Other non current assets (Considered good)
Capital Advances - -
Taxes recoverable - 19
- 19
8 Inventories (valued at lower of cost or net realizable value)
Kaw malerials (Keler nule 8.1 beluw) 4463 1,4¢0
I“inizhed goods
Manufactured goods 140287 108,507
Traded goods G.177 11,049
Total 149,927 121,016

8.1 This represents goods held by third party.

8.2 During the year, the Company has written off Rs.16,292 thousands (Previous Year ; Rs. 3,682 thousands} & charged to

Statement of Profit & Loss.
9  Trade receivables

Considered good
Considered doubtful

Provision for doubtful receivables
Considered-doubtful

631,931 673,050

32,040 20,102
663,970 693,152
(32,040} (20,102)
631,931 673,850

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any
other person. Ner any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director

is a partner, a director or a member.

Trade receivabies are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 90 to 120 days.

10 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
On current accounts
Less: Bank Overdraft (Refer Note 17)
Other bank balanccs

argin money deposits ( Refer note 10.1 below)
Amount disclosed under Financial Assets (Refer note 5)

Cash On hand

Total (A + B+C)

first charge 1o secure the company's bank guarantee.

11 Other current assets (Considered good)

Prepayment(s

Taxes recoverable

Other advances

Fair valualion ddjustingul-securily deposils

163,170 58,382
(185.171) (43,606}
(A 7.399 14,776
275 264
(275) (26:)
{R) - i _
26 90
(8] 26 90
8,025 14,866

Margin money deposit with a carrying amount of Rs. 235 thousands (March 31, 2017: Rs. 235 thousands) is subject 10

3,195 2,949
6,494 4,747
7,951 7,798
- 347
17,644 15.432




Indjannica Learning Private Limited

{Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (Tndia) Private Litmited)

CIN: U223 10DL199§PTC094399

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(AN amowsty are in thorsands of Indian Rupees: except per share data and unfess stated otherwise)

12

a)

b)

(4]

4y

Share capitat
Authorised share capital

Equity shares
No. of shares Amount
As al March 31, 2016 20,700,000 207,000
Increase during the year 30,004,000 300,000
As at March 31,2017 50,700,000 507,000
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2018 50,760,000 507,000

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Cempany has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 10 receive remaining assets of the company. after distribution of all preferential amount. The
distriburion will be in proportion to the equity shares held by the shareholders.

Issued share capital

No. of shares Amouat
Equity sharc of Rs. 10 cach issued, subscribed and fully paid up
As at March 31,2016 17,001,063 170,011
Increase during the year 32,350,000 323,500
Asat March 31,2017 49,351,063 493,511
Increase duning the year - -
As at March 3, 2018 49,351,063 493,511

Shares held by helding/ ulfimate holding company
Our of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company and ultimate holding company are as below:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Equity Shares
Navneet Education Limited, the holding company & uitimate holding company ( w.e.f, December 30,2016)
49,351,048 ( March 31 .2017: 49,351,048) equity shares of Rs.10 each (Also refer note (c) below) 493,510 493,510

Details of sharcholders (as per the register of shareholders) holding more than 3% of shares in the Company:

No. of shares % holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
As at March 31, 2017
Navnest Education Limited, the holding company 49,351,048 99.99%
As at March 31,2018
Navneet Educarion Limited, the helding company 49,351,048 99.99%

As per records of the company, including its regisier of shareholders/ members, ihe above shareholding represents legal ownerships of shares.

Transfer of shares

During the previous year Encyclopaedia Britannica Inc. USA, which was the hoiding company and Encyclopaedia Britannica Holding SA, which was the ultimate holding
company had sold its holdings in Encyclopaedia Britannica (India) Private Limited 10 Navneet Education Limited and Mr. Gnanesh Gala vide share purchase agreement
dated December 29, 2016,

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the peried of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

March 31,2018 March 31, 2087 March 31, 2016 March 31,2015 March 31,2014

Equiry shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to - - 11,623,199 - -
contracts for consideration other than cash to erstwhile
holding company

(This space has heen lefi hlank intentionally)




[ndiannica Learning Private Limited

fFormerly known as Encvelopaedio Britannica (ndia) Private Limited)

CIN: HJ22110DE1998PTC0%4399

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Al amownts are in thausonds of fndian Rupees: except per share daia ond unless siated othenvise)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

13 Borrowings
Non-current borrowings

Yehicle Loan (Secured)

Indian mipae Inan from NBFC (Refer note 131 balaww) - SR7
Indian mipee Inan from hank (Refer nnte 13 7 helpn) - 1,067
N 3,849
Current horrowings
Carrent matnrity of vehicle ioan from NBFC (secured) - 09
Current maturity of vehicle loan from bank (secured) - 383
Lurrent matunity of term loan trom NBEL {secured) - -
Current maturty of short tern lean rom related party (unsecured) {Refer nots 13.3 150,000 170,000
below)
Less: Ammount elublbed under borrowings under curtent fnancial Habilities' (Refer note (150,000 {171,094)
16)
- 3,649

13,1 Vehicle loan (Secured) amounting 1¢ Rs. 3,150 thousands was taken during the financial year 2013-14 and carries interest @ 11.31%. The
loan is repayable in 60 monthly installments of Rs.68 thousands each including interest. Number of insialiments due as at March 31, 2018 is
NIL (March 31, 2017: 21).

13.2 Vehicle loan {Secured) amounting to Rs. 3,544 thousands was taken during the financial year 2016-17 and carries interest @ 9.25%. The loan

is repayable in 84 monthly installments of Rs. 57 thousands each including interest. Number of installments due as at March 31, 2018 is NTL

(mfarch 31, 2017: 81).

13.3 Tniercorporate [oan {unsecured) amounting to Rs. 150,000 thousands was taken during the financial year 2017-18 from the holding company {
Nawneet Education Limited} and carries interest @@ 9%. The loan was for period of 3 months, and then extended for ierms of & months each,
[wo limes.

14 Provisions

Provision for employee henefits

Gratuity (Refer note 31) 1,550 3,704
Leave encashment 8,141 11,567
[0,691 15,271
Gratuity
Current 579 752
Non-current 971 2,952
1,550 3,704
Leave encashment
Current 986 1IN
WNon-current 8.154 10,375
9,141 11,566

Other provisions

Performance Bonus Sales Return Total
At Apnl U1, 2017 38,011 108,269 146,380
Add: adduions during the year 7,106 7,436 14,542
Less: amount used / adjustment during the year 32,501 - 32.501
At March 31, 2018 12,706 115,705 128421
Al April 01, 2016 14,345 102,747 117,092
Add: additions during the year 37,310 5,522 42,833
Less: amount used / adjustment duning the year 13,543 - 13,545
At March 31,2017 38,111 108,269 146,380
Current 12,716 115,705 128,421

Non Current - - -

Provision for Sales Return
A provision Tor Sales Return is created based on thie past trend of returns. e

Proevision for Performance Bonus
The Company has made provisions for performance bonus which are expected to be paid in the next year.

Employee benefits
Refer note 30 for details of employee benefits provided by the Comnpany.




Indiannica Learning Private Limited

(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (India) Private Limuied)

CIN: U221 10DL[998PTC094399

Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 20i8

(Al ainounts are in thousonds of Indian Rupees: except per share datg ond unless stated otherwise)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
153 Trade payables
- Outstanding dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 28,213 -
- Qutstanding dues to Qthers 223,948 249,581
: 252,161 249,581
15.1 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally setiled on §-90 day credir terms.
13.2 For explanations on the Company’s credit sk management processes refer note 38,
5.3 For disclosures required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Levelopment (MSMEL) Act, 2006, reter note 3.2
(This space has been left blank imtemionaliy)
16 Borrowings
Current borrowings {(Unsecured)
Indian rupes loan from holding company 150,000 170,000
150,000 170,000
17 Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Bank overdraft (Refer note 17.2 & 17.3 below) 185,171 43,606
Indian rupee loan from NBFC (Vehicle Loan) - 709
Indian rupee loan from bank (Vehicle Loan) - 383
185,171 44.700
17.1 Breakup of financial liabilities carried at amortised cosi
Long tenn matucity of Indian rupee ioan from NBFC (Refer note 13) - 387
Current matwrity of Indian rupee loan from NBFC (Refer note 13) - 709
Long term matunity of vehicle loan from Bank (Refer note 13} - 3,062
Current maturity of vehicle loan from bank {secured) - 335
Bank overdrafi {secured) 185,171 43,606
Trade payables {(Refer note 15) 252,161 249,581
437,352 297,929

17.2 The average rate of interest for the above mentioned overdraft facility during the year is 8.50% per annum.

17.3 Bank Overdeaft is secured against Pari Passu charge on currens & {ixed assels (both present and future) of the Company, aloag with Corporale

Guarantee for Rs, 30,000 thousands { Previous Year: 20,000 thousands) from holding company:.

18  Deferred revenue

At April 01, 2017 3,131 -
Leterred dunng the year 11,157 -
Released to the statement of profit and loss 6,995 -
At Mareh 31,2018 7,293 -
At Aprit 01,2016 - 3375
Deferred during the year - 17,403
Released to the statement of profit and foss - 17,645
At darch 51, 2017 - 3,151
Current 1,764 3133
Non-Current 2,529 -
19 Other current liabilitics
Statutery dugs payable 20,795 15 060
20,793 13,060

Stamtory durs represent linhility nn neemunt of varinns teves and fres payahle 1n gavermment anthoritics,
Y T Py it




Indianni¢ca Learning Private Limited

(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Al amounts are in thousands of ndian Rupees; except per share data and unless stated othenvise)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
20 Revenue from opcrations
Sale of products
Finished goods 765,703 878,757
Traded Goods 10,174 32,785
775,877 911,542
Less: Saies discount and incentives (215,992) (217,516)
559,885 694,026
Sale of services
Other operating Revenue 14,079 17,450
Revenue from operations (net of discounts and incentives) 573,964 711,476
Detaifs of products sold
Fintshed goods sold
Books 765,703 873,157
CD Sales - 5,600
765,703 878,757
Traded goods sold
Books 10,174 25519
CD Sales - 7,266
10,174 32,785
775,877 911,542
21 Other income
Firance income
[nterest on deposits with bank 22 745
Unwinding of discount on financial instruments 371 303
393 1,048
Miscellaneous income 1,831 2,086
2,224 3,134
22 Cost of raw materials and components eonsumed

Raw material consunmed

March 31,2018

March 31,2017

Inventory at the beginning of the year 1,460 1,959
Add : Purchases 233314 186,682
234,774 188,642
Less: inventory at the end of the year 463 1,460
Cost of raw material consumed 234,311 187,181
Detnils uf raw materinl purchused
Papar -
Books 233314 186,682
233314 186,682




Indiannica Learning Private Limited

(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U22110DL1938PTC094359

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Al amounis are in thousands of Indian Rupees; except per share data and uniess stated othenvise)

Particulars Warch 31,2018 March 31, 2007

23 Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories of finished goods and traded goods

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished goods 149,464 119,556
Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished goods 119,556 123,540
Decrease/ {increase) in inventories -29,908 3,984

Details of Inventory:
Fintshed Goods
Manufactured goods

Books 132,032 163,673
CDs 8,255 4,834
140,287 108,507

Traded Goods
Books 7,328 9,658
CDs 1,849 1,391
9,177 11,049

24 Puablication expenses

Royalty 58,729 69,468
Printing charges - 209
Other publication expenses 28,909 22,929
87,638 92,606
25 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, allowances and bonus 170,829 203,328
Contribution to provident and other funds 9619 9,773
Gratuily expense (Refer note 31) 2,935 3418
Staff welfare expenses 6,839 6,304
190,223 222,823
26 Finance costs
[nterest
- on barrowings 19,797 19,074
- on tax 1 43
Ancillary borrowing costs - 575
Other tinance charges 127 971
19,925 20,665
27 Depreciation and amoriisation expense
Depreciation of tangible assets {Refer note 3) 3,279 5,131
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4) 49,611 13,621

54.890 18.752




Indiannica Learning Private Limited

(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (India) Privare Limired}
CIN: U22110DLI1998PTC094399

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Al amounts are in thousands of Indian Rupees: except per share data and unless siated othervise)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
28 Other expenses
Rent 17,836 19,408
Insurance 664 2,418
Repairs and maintenance
Coumpulers 5,933 9,127
Others 6.504 6325
Electricity and water 1,643 1,858
Business promotion 16,669 12,543
Travelling and conveyance 38,007 44,782
Communication costs 6,952 8,734
Donation - 765
Exchange difference (net) 303 2,916
Advertisement and publicity 7,509 8,427
Printing and stationery 2,119 1,124
Legal and professional fees 4,967 9,399
Payment to auditor {Refer note 28.1 below) 987 3,073
Bad debts wrilten off 429
Less: bad debts written off against opening provision (429) - -
Provisien for doubiful debts 12,366 4,879
Fixed assets disposed off 136 -
Books and periodicals 157 120
Logistics expenses 72,518 50,177
Management fees - 6,174
Packing cost 3,536 6,092
Rates & taxes 268 1,483
Recruitment expenses 1,784 3,096
Miscellaneous expenses 783 176
201,642 202,628
28.1 Payment to auditors (Including service tax / GST):
As auditors
Statutory audit fee 708 2,420
Tax aodit fee 118 248
Reimbursement of expenses 161 405
987 3,073
29  Income tax S
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 are
a) Statement of profit and loss
Current tax
Current tax charge -
Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous years -
Deferred tax - 3
Rulnlng 1 orlptastdon andd reversal of wemporary differences 12,896 b,B28
Total tax expenses as per statement of profit and loss 12,896 7,017
b}y Reconciliation ol income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by statutory 1ax rate:
Mofit Lefure tas (181,003) (145,797)
Enacted tax rates in India 33.06% 33.06%
Computsd expected 1ax expense {50.845) {48,203)
linrecagnised Tax [.oss &9 985 31,067
Ltclarcd to 'Vax rate change for next tlnanical year 2,369 -
Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous years - 189
Others 387 3,971
Al the effective income tax rate of 33.06% (March 31, 2017: 33.06%) 12,896 7,017
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 12,896 = 7,017




Indiannica Learning Private Limited

(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (India} Private Limited)

CIN: U22110DL1998PTCGH94399

Notcs to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Al aniounts are in thousands of Indian Rupees; except per share data and unless siated otherwise}

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2617

c)

)

30

Effective tax rate for the Company will be 27.82% and hence Deferred Tax Asset is calculated considering this rate.

Details of tax losses:

The Company is having carry forward depreciation losses as at 3ist March 2018 of Rs. 1,47,103 thousands (Previous year: Rs. 66,025
thousands) which doesn’t have any expiry date and carry forward business losses as on 31st March 2018 is Rs.2,55,602 thousands
(Previous year: Rs. 1,23,335 thousands) which will be expired in next 6 years (Previous year : 7 years). Considering Josses incurred
during last two years, these assets are not recognised in finaneial statements.

Earnings per share (EPS)

The following is a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share:

Weighted average number of equity shares at the end of the year for 49,351,063 25,155,036
calculation of basic and diluted EPS

Net (Loss) before Other Comprehensive Income available for computing basic (193,899} {152,814)
and diluied EPS

Basic and diluted earnings per equity share (3.93) (6.07)

{This space has been left blank ntentionally)




[ndiannica Learaing Private Limited
(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britarmica (India) Privaie Linited)
CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Al amounts are in thousands of Indian Rupees; except per share data and unless stated othervise)

31  Defined benefit plan

Provision for gratuity

Total

Marceh 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

1,550

3,704

1,550

3,704

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last
drawn basic salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months. The scheme is funded with Life Insurance Corporation,

The following tables sumimaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet

and changes in the projected benefit obligation.

Net benefit expense recognised in the statement profit and loss

Current service cost
[merest cost on benefit obligation (Net)
Fund management charges

Net benefit expense recognised in the other comprehensive income

Re-measurement {loss)/gain on defined benefit plan

Balance sheet

Benefit liability

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Plan liability

Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation (DBO)

Opening defined bene(it obligation
Interest cost

Current service cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial losses on obligation
Closing defined benefit obligation

Changes in fair value of plan assets

Opening fair value of plan assets
Expected return

Centributions by employer
Benefit paid

Actuarial gain

Closing fair value of plan asscts

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 3,644 thousands to gratuity in the next year.

The major categories of plan assets as a percentase of the fair value of total plan assets are ns follows:

Life Insurance Corporation

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

2,663 3,288
272 130
2,935 3,418

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

1,731

(1,171)

1,731

(1,171}

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

(9.257) {12.346)
7,707 8,642
{1,530) {3,704}

March 31,2018

March 31, 2017

12,343 7,198
907 576
2,663 3,288
(4,987) -
(1,672) 1,283
9,257 12,345
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
8,642 5,569
694 445
3,358 2,515
(4,987} -
113
7,707 8.642

March 31,2018

March 31, 2017

100%

100%



Indiannica Learning Private Limited

(Formerly kmown as Encyclopaedia Brifannica {India) Private Limited)

CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(AH amounts are in thousands of Indien Rupees; except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

The principal assumptions used in defermining gratuity obligation for the Compaay®s plans are shown below:

March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Discount rate

Salary escalation

Piployet lurnuve

Apecioup to 30 vonrg

Fromm 31 0 44 years

Above 44 years

Mormal retirement age(Years)

Average remaining working life (Years)

The estimates ol uluie salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promoti
and demand in the employment market.

Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation.

7.80% 7.35%
9.00% 9.00%
0 0N% 20.00%
15.00% 15.00%
10.00% 10.00%
65 S
29.49 2920

on and cther relevan( futlors, such as supply

a) Impact of the change in discount rate

Fresent Value of Obligation at the end of the period

Impact due to increase of 0.50 %
lmpact due to decrease of 0.50 %

b) Impact of the change in salary increase
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period

Impact due to increase of 0.50 %
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 %

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
Between 1 and 5 years
Between 5 and 10 years

32 Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
9,257 12,345
{353) (470)
380 503
9,257 12,345
374 493
(352) (465)
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
579 753
3,302 3,190
5,377 3,403

ln terms of the requirements of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the Company has continuously scught confirmations. Based

on the information available with the Company there are no interest amounts due to micro and small enterprises.

March 31,2018 March 31,2017

the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any
supplier as at the end of each accounting year

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amoums of the payment made te the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accounting year

the amount of intersst due and payable for the penod of delay in making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micre
Smalt and Medivm Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

the amount of inferest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Developient
Act, 2006

28213



tndiannica Learning Private Limited

{(Forurerly known as Enicyclopaedia Britannica (India) Private Linited)

CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Al amounts ave in thousands of Indian Rupees: except per share data and uniess siated otherwise)

33

34

36

(I

Contingent Liabilities
The Company has given bank guarantee to Sales Tax department Rs.233 thousands (Previous year: Rs. 235 thousands).

Capital Commitments and Other Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be execuied on capital account and not provided for Rs. NIL (March 31, 2017: Rs. 249 thousands).

Leases
Operating lease: Company as lessee

The Company has taken premises for office use under cancellable operating lease agreements. The total lease rentals recognized as an expense during the year
under the above lease agreements aggregates to Rs. 17,836 thousands (March 31, 2017 Rs. 19,408 thousands). There are no restrictions imposed by the lease

agreements. There are no sub leases.
Amaunt payable within | year Rs, 2,198 thousands (Previous year: Rs. 16,231 thousands) and within 1 to 5 years Rs. Nit (Previous vear: Rs. 2,198 thousands).

Related party disclosures
Name of Related Parties and related party relationship:

Names of Related Parties where conrtrol exists

Holding Company Encyclopaedia Britannica Inc., USA (upto December 30, 2016)
Navneet Education Limited ( w.e.f. December 30,2016)

Ultimate Holding Company Encyciopaedia Britannica Holding SA ( upto December 30, 2016)
Navneet Education Limited { w.e.f. December 30,2016)

Directors / Key managerial personnel (disclosed Mr, Sarveshwar Srivastava ( Managing Director) (upto 16th May 2017)

only where there are transactions) Mr. Sumit Gupia ( CFO) ( upte 15th May 2017)

Mr. Sumit Gupta ( MD) { w.e.f.16th May 2017}
Mr. Tushar Jani { Independent Direetor) (w.e.f. 30th December 2016)
Mr. Chand Das Verma ( Independent Director) {w.e.f (6th March 2017)

Additignal related parties as per CA 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Company Secretary Ms. Akanksha Sharma ( upto May 6, 2016)
Ms. Meera Sawhney ( w.e.f. March 6, 2017)

Post employement Benelit Plan Indiannica Leaming Group Gratuity Scheme
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Fair value of financial assets and liabitities

The management assessed that the fair values of financizl asset and financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, interest accrued on deposits with bank, bank deposits, trade payables and other financial liabilities,

approximata their carrying emounts largety due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The management has considered fair value of security deposits, loan from NBFC, loan from bank, lean from related party, equal to their cammying value as fair
values based on the current market inferest rates and other risk factors approximate to carrying value.

Fair value hierarehy
The following table presents the financial assets and financial liabilities by level with the fair value measurement hierarchy :

March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Level of input used in* Carrving Amount Level of input used in Carrying Amount
Financial assets
At Amortised Cost
Trade receivables NA 631,931 NA 673,050
Cash and cash equivalents NA 8,025 NA 14,866
Interest accrued on deposits with bank NA - NA -
Bank deposits : NA 275 NA 264
At Fair Value Through P&L
Security deposits Level 2 4,201 Level 2 4,456
Financial liabilities
At Amortised Cost
tndian rupes loan from NBFC NA - NA 1,296
Indian rupee loan from Bank NA - NA 3,447
Indian rupee loan from related party NA ~ NA g
Bank overdraft NA 185,171 NA 43,606
Trade payables NA 252,161 NA 249,581

* There has been no transfer between fevel 1 and level 2 during the year ended Mareh 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017. Level is NA, since valued at amortised cost.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The maragement reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fiuciuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprise
three types of risk: foreign custency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk primarily include trade receivables,
radc payablcs, cash and cash cquivalents,

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate o the position for the periods presented. The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis that the
amownt of net debt and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market
variables on the carrying values of gratuity obligation and provisions.

The sensitivity of the relevant profil und loss ilem is the effect of (he assumed changes i respective markel risks based on the linancial assets and financial
liabilities held at the periods presented.

Interest rate risk

The following tables demonsirate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the
Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Effect ofit before
Change in Intt. Rate ect on profit befor

fax
March 31, 2018 - i% (1,852)
' _'_ e -1% 1,852
March 31, 2017 1%
-1%
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Forcign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to trade payables, trade receivables.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The Tallowing, ables demonsnate the sensitivity Tooa wasonally possibile clengs o TR0, with all other variabies held constant. ‘I'he impact on the Company’s
profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

fit befi
Chaoge in USD rate Effect on profit before

tax )
Mareh 31,2018 5% 160
-5% -160

March 31, 2017 3% (107)
-5% 107

Price risk
The Company is nat exposed to any significant price risk.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contracy, ieading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from ils operating activities, primarily for trade receivables and deposits with banks and other financial assets.

Trade receivables’

Customer credit risk is managed based on the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. The Company
evaluales the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low. Out of total trade receivables balance as at 31st March 2018, Rs. 74,353 thousands
(Previous year: Rs.91,381 thousands) is due form a single customer being the Company’s largest customer. There are no other customers who represent more
than 10% of the balance of trade receivables. Ouistanding customer receivables are regularly monitored by the management.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as
security.

The ageing of trade receivabie and credit loss allowance is as under:

Particulars Ageing Total
Upto 6 months More than 6 moaths

As at 31st March 2018
Secured - - -
Unsecured 618,526 45444 (63,970
Total receivables 618,526 45,444 663,970
| Allowance for doubttul receivables B - 32,040
Net Receivables 618,526 45,444 663,970
Expected loss rate * 5%
Av it 3l Mureh 2017
esnred
Unsecured 660,606 32545 | (93,152
Total receivables HoL,606 32,545 093,152
Allowvanee for donhifinl reeeivahles - 20,102
WEE ILECCIVILDICS U | 3, $93,132
E_.\:p.c-c:fca loss rate * 3%

* Expected loss rate includes both allowance made based on age of the recievabte and expected loss based on historical experience.
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Movement in credit loss allowance

Particulars Year ended 31st March | Year ended 31st Mareh
) ) 2018 2017

Balance at the beginning 20,102 16,778

Additional provision 12,366 4,879

Aumounts written off 429 1,556

Balance at the end 32,040 20,102

Deposits with banks and other financial assets

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses.
The Company’s objective is 10, at all times maintain optimum level of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Compary closely monitors its
liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system.

The table below summarises the marturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Particulars Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months Ito§ years Total

Year ended March 31, 2018

Indian rupee loan from related party - 150,000 - 150,000
Bank overdrafi 185,171 - - 185,171
Trade payables 252,161 - - 252,161
Year ended March 31, 2017

Indiar rupee [oan from NBFC 170 539 587 1,296
Indian rupee loan from Bank 93 292 3,062 3447
Indian rupee loan from refated party 170,000 - - 170,000
Bank overdralt 43,606 - - 43,606
Trade payables 249,581 - - 249,581

The Company is not exposed 1o significant liquidity risk.

39 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital inctudes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves atiributable to the equity shareholders.
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is t¢ maximise the shareholder value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes suitable adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions,
The Company menitors capilal using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, Loan
obtigation, trade and other payables and less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

MR M7

Indian rupee loan from MBFC - 1,296
Indian rupee loan from Bank - 3.447
Indian rupee loan from related parny 150,000 170,000
Bank overdrafi 185,171 43 606
Trade payables 252,161 249581
Less: cash and cash equivalent (8,025) {14,866)
Net Debt 579,300 454,064
Equity 382,737 575,387
Capuiat and Net debt 62,044 1,028,451

60% 44%

Grariug Raliv
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On April 07, 2017 the name of the Company changed from " Encyclopaedia Britannica { India) Private Limited" to "Indiannica Learning Private Limited™ and in
pursuant to requirement of Companies Act, 2013 the registrar entered the new name in the register of companies in place of the old name and issued a fresh
certificate of incorperation with the new name.

Exceptional Ifems
Exceptional ilems comprise of the following:

Charge of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2017: 67,106 thousands) towards payment of bonus to certain employees of the company as specified in share purchase agreement
and NIL {March 31, 2017: 67,106 thousands) as one tine recognition bonus to be paid to each full time employee of the Company. Out the this bonus recegnised,
during the year, the Company has written back Rs. 4,928 thousands (March 31, 2017: NIL ) and said write back is also shown under exceptional items in Profit &

Loss account.

Charge of ReMil (March 31,2017 - 2,294 thousands) 1owards legal and professional fees incurrcd on account of change in owncership from Enayelopaodia
Britannica Inc., USA to Navneet Education Limited for the year ended March 31,2017. Out the these expenses, during the year, the Company has recovered
cerlatn amcunts from erstwhile holding company and said recovery is disclosed as exceptional itlems in Profit & Loss accouat.

The Company’s activities during the year revolve around “Publishing and sale of educational books’. Considering the nature of Company’s business and
operations, there is only one reportable segment {business and/or geographical) in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS - 108 - ‘Cperating Segments’,
prescribed under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013.

Chief Financial Officer of the Company was promoted to the post of Managing Director w.e.f. 16th May 2017 and consequently there was no CFO post 16th
May 2017. The Company is in process of appointing a new CFO. Currently, the Company has availed extension for appointment of CFO from Ministry of
Corporate Aftairs upto [6th May 2018.

Changes in financing liabilities arising from cash and non-cash changes:

Particulars March 31,2017 Cash flows MNon-cash changes March 31, 2018
Bank overdraft 43,606 141,565 - 185,171
Loan from Parent company 170,000 (20,000) - 150,000
Total 213,606 121,565 - 335,171

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
ICAl Firm Registration No. 116560W / W10014%

Chartered Accountants
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